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APPENDIX B '

U. S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMISSION .

REGION IV

i

NRC Inspection Report: 50-285/84-21 License: DPR-40

Docket: 50-285
.

Licensee: Omaha Public Power District
1623 Harney Street
Omaha, Nebraska 68102

Facility Name: Fort Calhoun Station, Unit 1 -

Inspection At: Fort Calhoun Station, Blair, Nebraska

Inspection Conducted: August 28-31, 1984

0/
// 6 kInspectors: > + e--m

R. C. Stewart? Aesttor Inspector Datie /
,

Project Section B, Reactor Project Branch 2

4

///8ff$-f -- - i

D. E. Norman, Reactor Inspector Date
,

Project Section 8, Reactor Project Branch 2.

Q ll '/ '

Approved:
1 D. R. Hunter, Chief, Reactor Project Branch 2 Date
1 ,

I
' Inspection Summary
;

Inspection Conducted August 28-31, 1983 (Report 50-285/84-21),

Areas Inspected: Routine, unannounced inspection of the measuring and test
j equipment program, fluid system cleanliness, and snubber test procedures. In
j addition, an independent thermal power calorimetric heat balance calculation
2 was made in comparison to the licensees calculated reactor power level. The

inspection involved 44 inspector-hours onsite by two NRC inspectors.
.

Results: Within the areas inspected, two violations were identified (failure
to follow procedures paragraphs 2.b and 2.c; and inadequate procedures -
paragraphs 2.a and 3). One unresolved item was also identified regarding
calibration of the snubber test facility described in paragraph 2.e.
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DETAILS

,

,

. 1. Persons" Contacted '

Omaha Public Power District

*W. Gary Gates . Manager, Fort Calhoun Station (FCS)
*K. J. Morris - Manager, Administrative Services
* Alan W. Richard - Supervisor,. Technical' Services, RCS
*R. L. Jaworski - Section Manager, Technical Services, OPPD '

,
*P. M. Surber Section Manager, Generating Station Engineering

,; *F. F. Franco - Manager, RHEP
*M. C. Winter . Manager, Quality Assurance '

;'

*F. A. Thurte11.- Division Manager, QARA-
Randy Muller -' Supervisor, Instrumentation and Electrical '

Mark Ellis - Supervisor, Instrumentation and Controls
Dennis Dale - Senior QA Inspector

_

-

'

?.
C. J. Brunnert - Supervisor, Operations Quality Assurance - '

J. J. Fluehr - Reactor Engineer
M. Burggraf, Engineer, RCS

. .

i * Denotes attendance at the exit interview conducted on August.31,1984.'cr
.

2. ' Measuring and Test Equipment '

The NRC inspector reviewed the measuring and test equipment (M&TE) program
to verify compliance with regulatory requirements and licensee '

commiteents.

- The following documents were reviewed during this phase of the inspection:

Standing Order (50) M-7, " Calibration of Mechanical Gauging* ''

Equipment," Revision 18, dated December 27, 1983.

Standing Order (50) M-26 " Calibration Procedures," Revision 6, dated*

March 13, 1984.

Standing Order (50) M-28 " Calibration of Test Equipment,"*

Revision 15, dated November 3, 1983.

Calibration records for various I&C equipment.*

* ' Calibration records for snubber tests,

a. Paragraph A.13 of the OPFD QA program required that all items
inspected, tested, or measured with M&TE, since the latest valid
calibration, be treated as nonconformances when the M&TE was found to
be out of tolerance at recalibration. 'S0s M-7 and M-28 required that
a " Defective / Rejected Test Equipment Sheet" be completed when this
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occurs. This sheet has a space for " calibration procedures.
performed" with the M&TE since the last valid calibration; however,
.there are no instructions for identifying and retrieving information
to be entered on the sheet. Procedures have not been established to

Iidentify all items inspected, tested, or measured to specific M&TE '

nor to make disposition of possible nonconformances of those items
when M&TE was found to be out of tolerance. The failure to establish
adequate procedures to implement the requirements of the OPPD QA
program is a violation of Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR 50
(285/8421-01a).

b. Calibration records for several pieces of I&C M&TE were reviewed.
With the exception of two items, the calibration records appeared to
be in order. Two secondary standards (I&C#1 and #28) which were
found to be out of tolerance had not been identified on a
" Defective / Rejected Test Equipment Analysis Sheet," as required by
50 M-28 and OPPD QA program. Therefore, no analysis had been
performed to determine the effect of the out of tolerance condition.

The failure to follow the requirements of the OPPD QA program and 50
is a violation of Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR 50
(285/8421-02a).

c. 50 M-28 requires that minimum calibration schedules be established
for M&TE, and those schedules are published in Appendix A to 50 M-28.~
The minimum schedules for oscilloscopes and current measuring
equipment were not included. However, they were being calibrated on
a regular basis. The failure to provide the schedules as required by
the OPPD QA program and 50 M-28 is a violation of Criterion V of
Appendix B to 10 CFR 50 (285/8421-02b).

d. While reviewing calibration records, it was found that Dead Weight
Tester (I&C#29) had not been calibrated since April 15, 1977, even
though its minimum schedule was two years. It was determined by an
I&C supervisor that the tester was no longer active in the M&TE
program. Procedures do not address handling of inactive M&TE and
their records; however, it appears that both should be identified as
inactive. There was no indication that the equipment had been used.
No further questions are required of this matter at this time.

50 M-7 established an annual calibration schedule for Bergen-e.
Paterson Snubber Tester (BPST-1). The tester was inspected and a
calibration sticker on the load indicator showed a calibration date
of March 2, 1984, and a due date of May 25, 1984. There was no
sticker on the velocity indicator. Calibration records were then
reviewed; however, insufficient information concerning the records
and tester prevented a conclusive review of the records. The
manufacturer's manual for the tester could not be located, personnel
familiar with the tester were unavailable, and calibration records
were possibly incomplete. This item will be considered unresolved I
pending further review and evaluation (285/8421-03). '
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' 3. ! Fluid'Syst'em Cleanliness- A ,

' *%
The :NRC:inspebtor. reviewed dhe,following documents to verify compliance >

,m

4.A ;*~ ,
,

'

= with regulatory, requirements ~and licensee commitments regarding ;
.

cleanliness of flui.d' systems:*

'
'

=,

'50 M-1,1"Mainten'ance Procedures,"' Revision 5, dated*.- -

~ November 17,'1983.
, -

'

iS0 M-1, " Tool Accountability," Revision 2, dated April 11,' 1984..y. <* ,

?

Quality Assurance Plan, Section 6.3, " Cleanliness Controls, '

* .
, '

Revision 0, dated September 1, 1984.
'

r ' >

u . 6'
~

'

Section A.1 of the QA program commits the licensee to ANSI 45.2,' daughter:
standards, and standards associated with WASH-1283, WASH 1284 and
WASH 1309. The. appropriate Lissues of the standards were not. clearly-
indicated in the QA Program. However, it was. determined that

. , ,

'

iANSI 45.2.1-1973, and Reg Guide 1.37 were commitments; therefore, the r

. review was based on those requirements. " <

S0s M-1 and M-10 did not address the requirements of' ANSI 45.2.1. The QA-
plan made specific reference to fluid system cleanliness, but only by

,

requiring that procedures be developed. Procedures-to implement.those ' . "
~

requirements, 'and those of ANSI 45.2.1'(specifically, 'but not limited.to,.
paragraphs C.3, C.4, C.'5 and C.6 of Reg Guide 1.37) were not in evidence.'

,

The failure to provide implementing procedures'is considered a violation
of Criterion V of Appendix B of 10 CFR Part 50 (285/8421-01b).

4. Snubber Test Program'~ "

1j.

During this inspection, the NRC inspector conducted an overall review'of
the snubber testing program as specified in the FSC Technical >

Specifications, Sections 2.18 and 3.14. - i

s

a. Snubber Surveillance Program

~'

There were approximately 430 snebber restraints identiifed in the FCS .,

Technical Specifications as safety-related and. represent both
2 ' hydraulic and mechanical suppressors,~ supplied by.Bergen-Paterson,'

Paul. Monroe, ITT Grinnell, and' Pacific Scientific;'however,.the
majority of suppressors are Bergen-Paterson types, with;24 ITT
Grinnell and 15 Pacific Scientific units. ;

,

During discussions with the' cognizant licensee representatives, the.
~

NRC inspector was informed that all safety related.suppressors-were
re-built during a 1977 outage. This was considered the' start of a,

,
7% yr (5 cycle), inservice surveillance and test program which was ,

essentially based on'the snubber seal. life and surveillance and '
4

3{ testing conducted progressively each refueling outage. +
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b. Review of Procedures

The NRC inspector reviewed the licensee's surveillance and test
procedures in conjunction with Technical Specification requirements
contained in Sections 2.18 and 3.14.. The following procedures were
reviewed:

'

.

ST-SNUB-1-1, " Snubber Service Size Monitoring," dated, (revised)' *

November 15, 1983.

ST-HSS-4, " Functional Testing of Hydraulic Restraints (Snubbers)"*

Revision 4, dated March 22, 1984.

ST-HSS-5-1, " Surveillance of Grinnell Hydraulic Shock Suppressors*

Reservoir or Levels in Containment" Revision 5, dated October 3, 1983.

ST-HSS-3, " Surveillance of Accessible Shock Suppressors in*

Auxiliary Building," Revision 7, dated October 3,1983.

ST-HSS-2, " Surveillance of Inaccessible Shock Suppressors in*

Containment," Revision 6, dated June 7, 1983.

c. Review of Records

In conjunction with the above procedural review, the NRC inspector
reviewed FCS records of surveillance and functional test conducted
during the previous March 5, 1984 refuel outage. It was observed by
the NRC inspector, that the FCS program required that a minimum of
88 suppressors be sampled each outage; however, between 130 to 150
were generally selected at each outage. In addition, of 96 units
functionally tested during the refueling period, only 1 failure was
identified. The " failure" was a unit replacement due to a lower than
normal hydraulic fluid reservoir level.

All functional testing was conducted utilizing a Bergen-Paterson test
stand-series 2500 and associated equipment. It was also observed by
the NRC inspector that test records reflect acceptance criteria which
appears to be in compliance with manufacturer's service
recommendations and the FCS Technical Specifications.

No violations or deviations were identified.

i
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5. Calorimetric Heat Balance

During this inspection, the NRC inspectors obtained pertinent operational
data relative to the secondary reactor system enthalpy, flows, .and power
of plant parameters for subsequent computer input. The purpose of this
effort was to conduct an independent verification of reactor power (MW) in
comparison to the licensee's recorded reactor power at the comparable
time. Two data points were taken, (Second set after 15 minute interval).
The computed results were averaged within .03% of the licensee's recorded
reactor power level. This specific independent effort was only for the
purpose of exercising a newly developed NRC heat balance computer program.

6. Unresolved Items

Unresolved items are matters about which more information is required in
order to ascertain whether they are acceptable items, violations, or
deviations. Unresolved items disclosed during this inspection are
discussed in paragraph 2.e.

7. Exit Interview

An exit interview was conducted on August 31, 1984, with those persons
denoted in paragraph 1, of this report. During the interview, the NRC
inspectors discussed the findings indicated in this report.
Mr. Larry Yandell, Senior Resident Inspector, was also present at the
interview.
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